
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Rachael Liles, Democratic Services (01254) 380136 
Email:  rachael.liles@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Friday, 8 November 2019 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Committee 
 
Monday, 18 November 2019 at 5.00 pm, 
Queen Elizabeth Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Noordad Aziz 
Vice-Chair:  Councillor Tim O'Kane 
 
Councillors Chris Knight, Kate Walsh, Kath Pratt and Michael Miller 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions   
 

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
To submit the minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 29th July 2019 for approval as 
a correct record.  
 
Recommended – That the minutes be received and approved as a correct record.  
 

3.   Audit Progress Report and Key Issues July 2019 - October 2019  (Pages 9 - 14) 
 
The Head of Audit and investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee of Audit Reports issued during the period July – October 2019 and bring to 
the Committee’s attention what they key issues were.  
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019-2020 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

4.   Audit Follow Ups Report July 2019 - October 2019  (Pages 15 - 18) 
 
The Head of Audit and investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee of the outcome of routine follows-ups following the previously agreed action 
plans for completed Audit Records. The follow-ups detailed within this report are those 
carried out during the period July 2019 – October 2019. 
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 
 

5.   The Annual Audit Letter for Hyndburn Borough Council (Grant Thornton )  (Pages 
19 - 34) 
 
To inform Members of the Annual Audit Letter which summarises the key findings arising 
from the work that we have carried out at Hyndburn Borough Council for the year ended 
31 March 2019.  The letter is intended to communicate on the results of their work to the 
Council and external stakeholders. It also highlights issues that they wish to draw to the 
attention of the public.  
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 
 

6.   Audit Progress Report and Sector Update (Grant Thornton)  (Pages 35 - 48) 
 
The report informed members of the Audit Committee with an update on progress as of 
November 2019 in delivering Grant Thornton’s responsibilities as external auditors to the 
Council. It included a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may 
be relevant and a number of challenge questions in respect of emerging issues which the 
Committee may wish to consider.  
 
Recommended – That the report be noted for informational purposes.  
 

 
 



 
 

 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 
Monday, 29th July, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair), Councillors Tim O'Kane (Vice 

Chair), Addison, Chris Knight, Kath Pratt and Kate Walsh. 
 

Apologies Councillor Michael Miller, Stuart Sambrook and Helen Stevenson. 

  

 
74 Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted from Councillor Michael Miller, Stuart Sambrook 
(Policy & Research Officer) and Helen Stevenson (Grant Thornton). 
 
Councillor Judith Addison acted as a substitute representative for Councillor Miller. 
 
There were no reported declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

75 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last meeting held on the 11th March 2019 were submitted for approval.  
 
Resolved - That the minutes be received and approved as a correct  

record.  
 

76 Risk Management Monitoring Report 
 
The Head of Accountancy, David Donlan reported on behalf of the Policy and Research 
Officer to present a report which informed the Committee of the outcome of the review of 
the Generic, Strategic and Operational Risk Registers. 
 
There had been no major changes to the Strategic Risk Register but a number of minor 
changes had been made which were detailed in Appendix 1 of the report.  
 
There had been no major changes to the Generic Risk Register during the review period. 
 
There had been two major changes to the Operational Risk Register and a number of minor 
changes which were detailed in Appendix 2 of the report.  
 
A summary of all risks contained in the Generic, Operational and Strategic Risk Registers 
were detailed in Appendix 3 of the report. 
 
Councillor Chris Knight asked if the risk registers were available online for the general 
public to view and it was reported that whilst not a confidential document they were for 
internal purposes and not advertised on the website. 
 
The Chair asked why the new risk on the operational risk register concerning failure of 
primary and secondary air conditioning units in the server room had been added when it 
was a low risk. Background information was provided to the Committee as to why the risk 
had been added due to a number of factors. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
 

Councillor Tim O’Kane question item 35 and failure to secure the development of the 
Clayton Triangle, although it was stated by Officers that this was just a title and more details 
were included in the register. 
 
Councillor Addison discussed item 27 and the risk of public injury as a result of unsafe 
headstones and memorials in cemeteries across the borough. She explained that with the 
place of worship in Church Kirk having closed, the graveyard was not maintained and 
located next to a new housing development. The Deputy Chief Executive reported that the 
Parks Department had the relevant insurances and equipment to provide safety 
assessments on this matter. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

77 Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion 2018/19 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations had submitted a report to inform and update Audit 
Committee on the Annual Internal Audit Report and Audit Opinion for 2018/19 and to give 
details on the performance of the Internal Audit Team and final outturn position for 2018/19. 
 
Appendix 1 provided a detailed summary to Members and reported that good levels of 
internal control were found to be in place and no significant areas of concern were found 
that could impact on the Council’s Financial Statements.  
 
The Audit Opinion for 2018/19 was classed as ‘’Substantial assurance’ which meant that 
work undertaken was generally conducted with a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet the service objectives. The controls in place are generally being applied 
consistently, however some weaknesses in the design and/or inconsistent application of 
controls put the achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
Each audit report issued was given an audit opinion on the issues identified and reported by 
internal audit. Table 2 of the report detailed the opinions and how many each was issued in 
2018/19.  
 
Table 3 of the report detailed the Satisfaction and Quality Questionnaire (S&QQ) results for 
2018/19 and included he comparative results for the preceding financial years. 
 
Table 4 of the report detailed internal audit performance for 2018/19 together with the two 
most recent financial years as a comparison. 
 
Table 5 showed an analysis on internal audit time during 2018/19 with the comparative 
figures for the previous 2 financial years. 
Whilst Table 6 detailed the work carried out by internal audit during 2019/19 and is based 
on actual time recorded against the original approved time allocated within the Audit Plan 
for 2018/19.  
 
Target coverage for the 2018/19 Audit Plan was 98% and 95.32% was achieved. Whilst the 
out-turn figure was not significantly below the actual target, the Head of Audit & 
Investigations had carried out additional calculations and established that had there been 
no sickness, special leave, compassionate leave and other leave then the out-turn figure for 
the year would have been 98.74% which would have been 0.74% above the target 
coverage. Therefore the 2019/20 Audit Plan coverage target remains at 98%.  
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
 

78 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards- Quality Assurance & Improvement 
Programme 
 
The Head of Audit & Investigations informed members of the current position with the 
Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme (QAIP) which set out how HBC manage 
any of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) that are not compliant, thus 
ensuring conformance with the PSIAs overall. 
 
Appendix 1 of the report provided details on quality assurance issues for conformance with 
the standards along with elements of standards that are partially compliant or not yet 
compliant. 
 
Councillor O’ Kane commented on partner organisations and in the past the Council had a 
good working relationship with Hyndburn Homes. With Onward Homes having taken over 
the housing stock there was not the same agreements in place and the general public still 
viewed the properties ads Council owned housing. The Head of Audit & Investigations 
stated that Onward Homes received no support from the HBC Audit Department and that 
customer complaints had to be redirected back to Onward Homes.  
 
Councillor Addison reported it had taken 15th months of dialog to set up a communications 
channel with Onward Homes and Councillor Walsh added that properties in her ward had 
long term maintenance problems. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

79 Audit Reports & Key Issues- Progress Report for the Period February- June 2019 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee of Audit Reports issued during the period February 2019 - June 2019 and bring 
to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were.  
 
It was reported there was a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of 
the current financial year in terms of audit days completed. The figures contained in the 
report gave updated details to the end of June 2019 (21.37% of the plan completed) and 
the projected out turn position for 2019/20 (85047% of the plan completed). 
 
A summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out between February- June 2019  
was attached to Appendix 1 of the report and detailedboth substantial audit assurance in 
the following areas:  
 

Substantial Assurance 

 Procurement arrangements 

 Bank reconciliation 

 Dog warden services 

 Markets 

 Land charges  
 
Councillor Walsh reported there was no direct way to contact the Dog Warden as the 
website redirected residents to general enquiries. Councillor Pratt questioned if the item 
should be referred to the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Chair would 
ask for the item to be included in the work programme, if possible.  
 
Councillor O’Kane requested an update on the finance set aside for local authorities to deal 
with Brexit. The Deputy Chief Executive stated that the topic had been discussed at 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
 

Management Team although they were awaiting further information from central 
government now there had been a change in Prime Minister and the October deadline was 
approaching.  
 
Councillor Addison commented on procurement and was there a central purchasing 
process rather than it being done on an individual basis.  
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

80 Audit Follow-Ups Report for the Period March- June 2019 
 
The Head of Audit and Investigations submitted a report to inform members of the Audit 
Committee on the outcome of routine follow-ups following previous agreed action plans for 
completed Audit Records. The follow-ups detailed within the report were those carried out 
during the period March- June 2019. 
 
The information on the following follow-ups were carried out during the period March to 
June 2019 and were detailed within Appendix 1 of the report. 
 

 Internet and E-Mail 
4 actions agreed and 4 actions had been implemented 

 

 CCTV 
2 actions agreed and 2 actions had been implemented 

 

 Accounts Receivable 
4 actions agreed and 4 actions had been implemented 
 

Councillors O’Kane and Knight discussed junk emails and how best to deal with the issues 
whilst the Head of Audit and Investigations provided information on how different users 
across the authority have varying degrees of size limits allocated to their mail boxes.  
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

81 Audit Findings Report for Hyndburn Borough Council (Year ended 31 March 2019) 
Grant Thornton 
 
Grant Thornton submitted a report to inform members of the committee on the audit 
findings and highlighted the key findings arising from the statutory audit of HBC and the 
preparation of the Council’s financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 for 
those charged with governance. 
 
Andrew Smith of Grant Thornton communicated the headlines of the report and provided 
Members with a summary of details for each section, which included:  
 

 Significant findings- audit risks 

 Significant findings- other issues 

 Significant findings- key judgements & estimates 

 Significant findings- matters discussed with management 

 Significant findings- going concern 

 Other communication requirements 

 Other responsibilities under the code 

 Value for money 

 Independence and ethics 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
 

 Action plan 

 Follow up of prior year recommendations 

 Audit adjustments 

 Fees 
 
The report was explained with a summary of details for each section and Members 
provided comments during the presentation of all the information. 
 
The Chair on behalf of the Audit Committee thanked the Grant Thornton team for all the 
work undertaken and requested that a thank you be recorded in the minutes to the Deputy 
Chief Executive, Head of Accountancy and the HBC finance team for their work this year to 
meet the required deadlines. 
 
Resolved - That the report be noted for informational purposes. 
 

82 Statement of Accounts 2018/19 
 
The Head of Accountancy submitted a report to inform Members of the Audit Committee on 
the production of the annual accounts and their external audit and to deal with any issues 
arising from this work. 
 
The HBC statement of accounts was attached to the supplemental agenda as appendix A, 
along with a letter of representation from HBC to Grant Thornton (Appendix B) and the 
Capital Outturn report which contained slippage on the Capital Programme 2018/19 to 
2019/20 (Appendix C). 
 
The report submitted was to ensure the Council complies with its statutory duty to submit 
the audited accounts for 2018/19 by the 31st July 2019 deadline. 

 
Resolved - (1) That Audit Committee approved and signed the  

Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 (In Appendix A); 
and 
 

- (2) That Audit Committee approved and signed the letter of 
representation (In Appendix B); and 

  
- (3) That Audit Committee approved the slippage on the Capital 

Programme (In Appendix C); and  
  

-  (4) That Audit Committee noted the audit findings report 
produced by Grant Thornton (Agenda item 9). 

 
83 Time/Date/Venue of Next Meeting of Committee 

 
Resolved - That the next meeting of the Audit Committee be held on  

Monday 18th November 2019 at 5.00pm in Scaitcliffe House. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 8



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 18 November 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT REPORTS & KEY ISSUES – PROGRESS 
REPORT FOR THE PERIOD JULY 2019 – 
OCTOBER 2019 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the Audit Reports issued during the period July 2019 – October 

2019 and bring to the attention of the Committee what the key issues were. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 note the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report covers the period July 2019 to October 2019 with the audit areas and any 

key issues detailed at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 Members should be aware that the number of audit reports that are issued between 

each Committee meeting is subject to variation dependent on the size of the audit and 
any non-routine audit work, such as investigations, that the Team may be involved in. 
Therefore, for the purpose of reporting, only the audit reports fully completed, issued 
and agreed will be included. 

 
3.3 Any investigations that may be carried out will not be included as a matter of routine in 

this report, particularly if they relate to a specific individual or individuals. 
 
3.4 There is a target of 98% of the audit plan to be completed by the end of the current 

financial year in terms of audit days completed. As the audit team complete timesheets 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3.



which then feed into the audit plan, it is possible to state the progress to date and the 
projected end of year position if that date is extrapolated out. Therefore:- 

  Position as at end of October 2019 = 55.84 % of the plan completed 
  Projected out-turn position for 2019/20 = 95.73 % of the plan completed 
 
3.5 The position at the end of October 2019 can be broken down as follows:- 
 

Month % of the Plan Completed that Month 

April 2019 8.24% 

May 2019 6.97% 

June 2019 6.16% 

July 2019 9.01% 

August 2019 7.80% 

September 2019 8.06% 

October 2019 9.60% 

 
3.6 The projected out-turn position for the year is based on the first 7 month period April to 

October 2019 and assumes that the output remains at a constant for the remainder of 
2019/20.  

 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for informational purposes only 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are legal or human rights implications 
arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 

This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit Team 
against the annual Internal Audit Plan. The 
Audit Planning process has had an equality 

Page 10

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


an appendix to the report.  
 

impact assessment which remains valid and it 
is not necessary to update this with a 
Customer First Analysis at this time. The 
individual audit assignments may, in some 
cases, feed into the needs of equality and 
diversity issues within individual service areas 
of the Council 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



APPENDIX 1 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 18th November 2019 
 
Summary of the main issues arising from audits carried out 
July 2019 – October 2019 
 
 
Corporate Strategy:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 Arising from a staff survey there is a desire from staff for Senior Management to be 

more visible to all staff thus helping drive forwards the aims and targets from the 
Corporate Strategy.  
 

 Refreshing the presentation of performance management information to ensure the 
Council has clear information on how the Strategy’s objectives are being met. 
 

 Consideration of how to utilise both the information from the staff survey and the 
performance indicators in engagement with other staff / customers and elected 
members. 
 

  
Cash Receipting:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 Work is taking place for the migration to new software and this opportunity should be 

used to review the list of users and remove any staff no longer employed by the 
Council. 
 

 It must be ensured that the new software has the necessary PCI/DSS (Payment Card 
Industry / Data Security Standard) compliance to prevent the risk of non-compliance, 
fines or penalties. Consideration must be given as to where card data will be held as 
this can impact on the compliance element. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Selective Licensing – Private Landlords:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Comprehensive assurance 
The work undertaken showed a sound system of internal control which is designed to meet 
the service objectives, in addition the work carried out showed controls are consistently being 
applied. 
 
 There were no issues arising. 

 
 
Cloud Storage & Server Room Security:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 Three recommendations were made in relation to this audit. Due to the confidential 

nature and security implications of these recommendations these are not detailed 
within this report. However, the Head of Audit & Investigations will give a brief overview 
verbally at the Audit Committee meeting. 
 

 
Planning – Delegate Reports:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 The Chief Planning & Transportation Officer agreed to consider increasing the number 

of days from 14 to 21 via the Constitution to bring into line the amount of time to the 
same as that for public consultation on planning matters. This relates to where a 
request is made in writing by a Councillor for an application listed on the weekly list of 
planning applications to be referred to Planning Committee having given reasons for 
this. 
 

 The Chief Planning & Transportation Officer will give consideration to checking the 20 
most recent applications uploaded to the Council website to ensure that the correct 
documentation is applicable to each application. The audit had found some examples 
of missing supporting reports / information although it was not always clear that the 
missing information was applicable for that case. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



Employee Safety:- 
 
Audit Assurance Opinion Issued:- Substantial assurance 
The work undertaken showed there is generally a sound system of internal control designed 
to meet service objectives, and controls are generally being applied consistently. However, 
some weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the 
achievement of particular objectives at risk. 
 
 Six recommendations arose from this work. Due to the nature and safety aspects of 

these, the head of Audit & Investigations will give a brief verbal update to Audit 
Committee. 

 
 
 
 

Page 14



REPORT TO: Audit Committee 

DATE: 18 November 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Joyce Plummer - Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Mark Beard – Head of Audit & Investigations 

TITLE OF REPORT: AUDIT FOLLOW-UPS REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 
July2019 – October 2019 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication: n/a 

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform members of the outcome of routine follow-ups following the previously 

agreed action plans for completed Audit Reports. The follow-ups detailed within this 
report are those carried out during the period July 2019 – October 2019. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 I recommend that Audit Committee: 

 notes the content of this report for informational purposes. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 This report covers the period July 2019 – October 2019 details of the follow-ups carried 

out shown at Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 Following the agreement of the recommendations between Management and Internal 

Audit following the completion of the audit assignment, the area is revisited by Internal 
Audit and the recommendations are reviewed to ensure they have been implemented 
as agreed. This process is known as the ‘Follow-Up’. 

 
3.3 Internal Audit assesses the current position to what was agreed at the end of the audit. 

Where no action has been taken by the Service Area, then Internal Audit will question 
why and issue a revised Action Plan. Part of the control within this process is 
consideration by Audit Committee of any issues that arise. The Committee has the 
ability to ask questions of Management in the relative service areas why they have not 
acted upon the agreed Action Plan. The Committee can also express what its 
expectations would be with regard to such a problem occurring. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4.



3.4 Internal Audit aim to carry out a Follow Up for each completed audit area within 6 
months of completion. However there are a number of exceptions to that aim:- 

i.) Follow-Up in 6 months would be pointless if the recommendations are 
low enough priority to allow a longer time frame. 

ii.) Work of the Audit Team does not allow the Follow-Up to be carried out. 
Although Follow Ups are an important part of the process the Head of 
Audit & Investigations must always weigh this against the need for 
achieving the Audit Plan and auditing the risks the Council faces. 

iii.) There were no recommendations arising from the original audit. 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable as the report is for informational purposes only 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 No consultations required as this report is based on data and information held by the 

audit team based on the work completed 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

There are no financial implications arising 
from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

There are legal or human rights implications 
arising from this report. 

Assessment of risk 
 

Risks are taken into consideration during the 
audit process itself, there is no direct risk 
implication from this report. 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

 
This report is produced for information 
awareness of the progress of the Audit Team 
in terms of following up on actions previously 
agreed for implementation at the end of an 
audit assignment. Whilst individual actions 
may occasionally have equality or diversity 
requirements, this report does not as it is 
presenting facts from other sources. 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 No background papers were necessary for the preparation of this report. 

Page 16

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


APPENDIX 1 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE – 18th November 2019 
 
Follow-Ups     July 2019 – October 2019 
 
Follow-Ups Carried Out 
 
The following Follow-Ups were carried out during the period July 2019 – October 2019:- 
 

 Dog Warden Service 
 Capital Programme 

 
Issues arising from follow-up 
 

 The table below shows an analysis of the results of the above Follow-Up work having 
taken place:- 

 

Audit Area No. of Actions 
Agreed as 
Reported 

No. of Actions 
Agreed 

Implemented 

Comments 

Dog Warden 
Service 
 

1 1 Implemented 1. To ensure that the Authority was 
being charged correct fees in 
relation to the Kennelling 
Contract as the contract was due 
to come to an end at the time of 
the review. 
A new contract document has 
been agreed following a tender 
exercise which was undertaken 
by Pendle Borough Council on 
behalf of the four authorities 
which share this service. The 
contract is in place from 
30.09.2019 to 29.09.2022 with an 
option to extend to 29.09.2025. 

Capital 
Programme 

2 2 Implemented 1. Capital programme schemes 
reported on slippage reports 
have been discussed and those 
which were included and external 
funding is now unlikely to be 
received have been removed 
from the Capital Programme for 
19/20. 

2. A reminder will be issued to all 
those attending the Capital 
Programme Working Group 
meetings to reiterate the need for 

Page 17



obtaining the correct number of 
quotes for orders under £10k, 
and to retain the supporting 
documentation. 

 
 

Page 18



The Annual Audit Letter

for Hyndburn Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2019

23 August 2019

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 5.



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Executive Summary 3

2. Audit of the Financial Statements 5

3. Value for Money conclusion 10

Appendices Page

A.  Reports issued and fees 12

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Andrew Smith

Key Audit Partner

T: 07960 214550

E: andrew.j.smith@uk.gt.com

Helen Stevenson

Audit Manager

T: 07880 456209

E: helen.l.stevenson@uk.gt.com

Aaron Gouldman

Audit Incharge

T: 07826 897126

E: aaron.r.gouldman@uk.gt.com

P
age 20

mailto:andrew.j.smith@uk.gt.com
mailto:helen.l.stevenson@uk.gt.com


© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 3

Executive Summary

Purpose

Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 

work that we have carried out at Hyndburn Borough Council ( the Council) 

and its associates (the group) for the year ended 31 March 2019.  

This Letter is intended to provide a commentary on the results of our work to 

the Council and external stakeholders, and to highlight issues that we wish to 

draw to the attention of the public. In preparing this Letter, we have followed 

the National Audit Office (NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice and Auditor 

Guidance Note (AGN) 07 – 'Auditor Reporting'. We reported the detailed 

findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit Committee as those 

charged with governance in our Audit Findings Report on 29 July 2019.

Respective responsibilities

We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit Practice, 

which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 

Act). Our key responsibilities are to:

• give an opinion on the Council and group's financial statements (section two)

• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section 

three).

In our audit of the Council and group's financial statements, we comply with 

International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the 

NAO.

Materiality We determined materiality for the audit of the Council and group’s financial statements to be £938,000 and £938,100 

respectively which is 2% of the Council's gross revenue expenditure. 

Financial Statements opinion We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council and group’s financial statements on 31 July 2019. 

Whole of Government Accounts 

(WGA)

We submitted an assurance statement following guidance issued by the NAO.

Use of statutory powers We did not identify any matters which required us to exercise our additional statutory powers.

Our work

P
age 21



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 4

Executive Summary

Working with the Council

During the year we have delivered a number of successful outcomes with 

you:

• Improved financial processes – we worked with you to streamline your 

processes around the rolling programme of revaluations of property, plant 

and equipment.

• Understanding your operational health – through the value for money 

conclusion we provided you with assurance on your operational 

effectiveness. 

• Sharing our insight – we provided regular audit committee updates covering best 

practice. We also shared our thought leadership reports

• Providing training – we provided your teams with training on financial statements 

and annual reporting

We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation

provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP

August 2019

Value for Money arrangements We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. We reflected this in our audit report to the Council on 29 July 2019.

Certification of Grants We also carry out work to certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions.

Our work on this claim is not yet complete and will be finalised by 30 November 2019. We will report the results of this work to the 

Audit Committee separately.

Certificate We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Hyndburn Borough Council in accordance with the 

requirements of the Code of Audit Practice on 31 July 2019. 

P
age 22



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 5

Audit of the Financial Statements

Our audit approach

Materiality

In our audit of the Council and group's financial statements, we use the 

concept of materiality to determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, 

and in evaluating the results of our work. We define materiality as the size of 

the misstatement in the financial statements that would lead a reasonably 

knowledgeable person to change or influence their economic decisions. 

We determined materiality for the audit of the group financial statements to 

be £938,100, which is slightly higher than 2% of the Council’s gross revenue 

expenditure. We determined materiality for the audit £938,000, which is 2% 

of the Council’s gross revenue expenditure. We used this benchmark as, in 

our view, users of the group and Council's financial statements are most 

interested in where the group and Council has spent its revenue in the year. 

We also set a lower level of specific materiality of £15,000 for senior officer 

remuneration.

We set a lower threshold of £47,000 above which we reported errors to the 

Audit Committee in our Audit Findings Report.

The scope of our audit

Our audit involves obtaining sufficient evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements to give reasonable assurance that they are free from material 

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether:

• the accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied and 

adequately disclosed; 

• the significant accounting estimates made by management are reasonable; and

• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view. 

We also read the remainder of the financial statements and the narrative report, 

annual governance statement to check it is consistent with our understanding of the 

Council and with the financial statements included in the Annual Report on which we 

gave our opinion.

We carry out our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK) and the NAO Code of Audit 

Practice. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council and 

group's business and is risk based. 

We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to 

these risks and the results of this work.

P
age 23



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 6

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks
These are the significant risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of land and buildings

The Council revalues its land and buildings on a rolling five-yearly

basis. This valuation represents a significant estimate

by management in the financial statements due to the size of

the numbers involved and the sensitivity of this estimate to

changes in key assumptions.

The Council’s financial statements 2017/18 included £22.9m

net book value of property, plant and equipment (PPE), of

which £18.2m is in respect of land and buildings.

Additionally, management will need to ensure the carrying

value in the Council’s financial statements is not materially

different from the current value or the fair value (for surplus

assets) at the financial statements date, where a rolling

programme is used

We therefore have identified valuation of land and buildings,

particularly revaluations and impairments, as a significant risk,

which was one of the most significant assessed risks of

material misstatement.

As part of our audit work we have:

• evaluated management's processes and 

assumptions for the calculation of the 

estimate, the instructions issued to

valuation experts and the scope of their 

work

• evaluated the competence, capabilities 

and objectivity of the valuation expert

• written to the valuer to confirm the basis 

on which the valuation was carried out

• challenged the information and 

assumptions used by the valuer to assess 

completeness and consistency with our

understanding

• tested revaluations made during the year 

to see if they had been input correctly into 

the Council’s asset register; and

• evaluated the assumptions made by 

management for those assets not revalued 

during the year and how management

has satisfied themselves that these are not 

materially different to current value at the 

year end.

Audit examination of the work completed 

by the District Valuation Service identified 

that out of the total net book value (NBV)

of land and buildings of £19.4m only 

£2.4m had been subject to revaluation as 

part of the rolling programme.

We requested that further work be 

undertaken by the Council’s own 

valuation team to assess whether the 

land and property

not valued had materially changed since 

the date last revalued and recorded in the 

financial statements.

We completed further work to examine 

the in house valuations and detailed 

methodology and were satisfied that the 

values recorded in the financial 

statements are not materially misstated. 

We raised recommendations to improve 

to Council’s rolling revaluation 

programme.

P
age 24



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 7

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks - continued
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Valuation of net pension liability

The Council's net pension fund liability, as reflected in 

its

balance sheet as the net defined benefit liability, 

represents a

significant estimate in the core financial statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant

estimate due to the size of the numbers involved 

(£38.8m in

the Council’s 2017/18 balance sheet) and the sensitivity 

of the

estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Council’s net 

pension

fund liability as a significant risk, which was one of the 

most

significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

As part of our audit work we have:

• updated our understanding of the processes and controls 

put in place by management to ensure that the Council’s 

pension fund net liability is not materially misstated and 

evaluate the design of the associated controls

• evaluated the instructions issued by management to their 

management expert (the actuary) for this estimate and the 

scope of the actuary’s work

• assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the 

actuary who carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation

• assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information 

provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the liability

• tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability 

and disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements 

with the actuarial report from the actuary

• confirmed the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions 

made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as 

auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures 

suggested within the report; and

• obtained assurances from the auditor of Lancashire Pension 

Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy 

of membership data; contributions data and benefits data sent 

to the actuary by the pension fund and the fund assets 

valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

We have completed our procedures to 

confirm the reasonableness of the 

actuarial assumptions made by reviewing 

the report of the consulting actuary (as 

auditor’s expert) and performed additional 

procedures to test the validity of the

data.

We also considered the assumptions 

used by the actuary (Mercers) to estimate 

the impact of the McCloud judgement on 

the Council’s pension fund liability. 

Mercers re-ran the pension calculations 

using the Government Actuary

Department (GAD) standard assumptions 

of 1.5% real pay increases. This resulted 

in an increased gross pension liability of 

£672k and increased assets of £276k, 

which increased the net liability by £396k. 

We were satisfied that the assumptions 

were reasonable and there is no material 

impact for the financial statements.

P
age 25



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 8

Audit of the Financial Statements

Significant Audit Risks - continued
These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Management override of internal controls

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that

the risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all

entities.

The Council faces external scrutiny of its spending and this could

potentially place management under undue pressure in terms of

how they report performance.

We therefore identified management override of control, in

particular journals, management estimates and transactions outside

the course of business as a significant risk, which was one of the

most significant assessed risks of material misstatement.

As part of our audit work we have:

• evaluated the design effectiveness of 

management controls over journals

• analysed the journals listing and 

determine the criteria for selecting high risk 

unusual journals

• tested unusual journals recorded during 

the year and after the draft accounts stage 

for appropriateness and corroboration

• gained an understanding of the accounting 

estimates and critical judgements applied 

made by management and considered their 

reasonableness with regard to corroborative 

evidence

• evaluated the rationale for any changes in 

accounting policies, estimates or significant 

unusual transactions.

Our audit work has not identified any 

issues in respect of management 

override of controls.

P
age 26



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 9

Audit of the Financial Statements

Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council and group's financial 

statements on 31 July 2019.

Preparation of the financial statements

The Council presented us with draft financial statements in accordance with 

the national deadline, and provided a good set of working papers to support 

them. The finance team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries 

during the course of the audit. 

Issues arising from the audit of the financial statements

We reported the key issues from our audit to the Council’s Audit Committee 

on 31 July 2019. 

In addition to the key audit risks reported above, we identified the following 

issues throughout our audit that we have asked the Council's management to 

address for the next financial year:

Segregation of Duties: 

There needs to be oversight of the finance system administration from 

someone outside of the finance function, ideally from information and 

communications technology (ICT) services.

Revaluation of Assets:

The Council’s revaluation programme should be revised to a value-based 

approach. We recommend that the highest value assets are formally 

revalued each year, with the remainder being revalued on a five-yearly rolling 

basis.

Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report

We are required to review the Council’s Annual Governance Statement and Narrative 

Report. It published them on its website within the Statement of Accounts in line with 

the national deadlines. 

Both documents were prepared in line with the CIPFA Code and relevant supporting 

guidance. Subject to minor amendments, we confirmed that both documents were 

consistent with the financial statements prepared by the Council and with our 

knowledge of the Council. 

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 

We carried out work on the Council’s Data Collection Tool in line with instructions 

provided by the NAO . We issued an assurance statement which confirmed the 

Council was below the audit threshold on 8 August 2019. 

Certificate of closure of the audit

We certified that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Hyndburn 

Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice on 

31 July 2019.

P
age 27



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 10

Value for Money conclusion

Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit 

Practice, following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2017 which 

specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:

In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions 

and deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for 

taxpayers and local people. 

Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 

identify the risks where we concentrated our work.

The risks we identified and the work we performed are set out overleaf.

As part of our Audit Findings report agreed with the Council in July 2019, we 

agreed recommendations to address our findings.

Overall Value for Money conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources 

for the year ending 31 March 2019.

P
age 28



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 11

Value for Money conclusion

Value for Money Risks

Risks identified in our audit plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions

Financial sustainability

The Council faces future funding uncertainties and 

increased costs. The Council’s latest Medium 

Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) was updated in 

October 2018 and set out savings requirements of 

£814k for 2019/20, £1,064k for 2020/21 and £91k 

for 2021/22 based on standard assumptions.

The Council has also set out optimistic and 

pessimistic scenarios over the 3 year MTFS. The 

pessimistic model giving a cumulative savings 

requirement over the period 2019/20 to 2021/22 of 

£5.9m.

We reviewed budget monitoring 

reports and updates to the MTFS.

We discussed with officers plans 

to address future potential budget 

gaps and how the Council is 

identifying, managing and 

monitoring financial risks. 

We reviewed and monitored 

revenue and informed capital 

reports.

The Council has a history of effective financial management and control 

and delivering a surplus outturn position. It also has a strong balance 

sheet position with General Fund and earmarked reserves of £13.7m as 

at 31 March 2019.

• On this basis we have concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated 

and the Council has proper arrangements

• The Council will need to continue to monitor its spending and the 

achievement of savings closely through the coming year to ensure it 

delivers against its budget

P
age 29



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 12

A. Reports issued and fees

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Fees

Planned

£

Actual fees 

£

2017/18 fees

£

Statutory audit 36,134 40,634 46,927

Audit of group accounts 3,000 3,000 3,000

Total audit fees 39,134 43,634 49,927

Housing Benefit Grant Certification 4,750 TBC 4,224

Total fees 43,884 TBC 54,151

Fee variations are subject to PSAA approval.

Reports issued

Report Date issued

Audit Plan 31 January 2019

Audit Findings Report 29 July 2019

Annual Audit Letter 23 August 2019

Audit fee variation

As outlined in our audit plan, the 2018-19 scale fee published by PSAA 

of £36,134 assumes that the scope of the audit does not significantly 

change.  There are a number of areas where the scope of the audit has 

changed, which has led to additional work.  These are set out in the 

following table.

Area Reason

Fee 

proposed 

Assessing the 

impact of the 

McCloud ruling 

The Government’s transitional arrangements 

for pensions were ruled discriminatory by the 

Court of Appeal last December. The Supreme 

Court refused the Government’s application for 

permission to appeal this ruling.  As part of our 

audit we have reviewed the revised actuarial 

assessment of the impact on the financial 

statements along with any audit reporting 

requirements. 

£1,500

Pensions – IAS 

19 

The Financial Reporting Council has 

highlighted that the quality of work by audit 

firms in respect of IAS 19 needs to improve 

across local government audits. Accordingly, 

we have increased the level of scope and 

coverage in respect of IAS 19 this year to 

reflect this.

£1,500

PPE Valuation –

work of experts 

As above, the Financial Reporting Council has 

highlighted that auditors need to improve the 

quality of work on PPE valuations across the 

sector. We have increased the volume and 

scope of our audit work to reflect this. 

£1,500

Total £4,500

P
age 30



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019 13

A. Reports issued and fees continued

We confirm below our final reports issued and fees charged for the audit and confirm there were no fees for the provision of non audit services.

Fees for non-audit services

Service Fees £

Audit related services 

- None 

Nil

Non-Audit related services

- None 

Nil

P
age 31



Our connections
 We are well connected to MHCLG, the 

NAO and key local government networks

 We work with CIPFA, Think Tanks and 
legal firms to develop workshops and good 
practice

 We have a strong presence across all parts 
of local government including blue light 
services

 We provide thought leadership, seminars 
and training to support our clients and to 
provide solutions

Our people
 We have over 25 engagement leads 

accredited by ICAEW, and over 
250 public sector specialists

 We provide technical and personal 
development training

 We employ over 80 Public Sector trainee 
accountants

The Local Government economy 

Local authorities face unprecedented challenges including:

- Financial Sustainability – addressing funding gaps and balancing needs against resources

- Service Sustainability – Adult Social Care funding gaps and pressure on Education, Housing, 

Transport

- Transformation – new models of delivery, greater emphasis on partnerships, more focus on 

economic development

- Technology – cyber security and risk management

At a wider level, the political environment remains complex:

- The government continues its negotiation with the EU over Brexit, and future arrangements 

remain uncertain.

- We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources as part 

of our work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

- We will keep you informed of changes to the financial  reporting requirements for 2018/19 

through on-going discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

New 
opportunities 
and challenges 
for your 
community

Our quality
 Our audit approach complies with the 

NAO's Code of Audit Practice, and 
International Standards on Auditing

 We are fully compliant with ethical 
standards

 Your audit team has passed all quality 
inspections including QAD and AQRT

Grant Thornton in Local 
Government

 We work closely with our clients to ensure that we understand their financial challenges, 

performance and future strategy.

 We deliver robust, pragmatic and timely financial statements and Value for Money audits

 We have an open, two way dialogue with clients that support improvements in arrangements 

and the audit process

 Feedback meetings tell us that our clients are pleased with the service we deliver. We are not 

complacent and will continue to improve further

 Our locally based, experienced teams have a commitment to both our clients and the wider 

public sector

 We are a Firm that specialises in Local Government, Health and Social Care, and Cross 

Sector working, with over 25 Key Audit Partners, the most public sector specialist Engagement 

Leads of any firm

 We have strong relationships with CIPFA, SOLCAE, the Society of Treasurers, the Association 

of Directors of Adult Social Care and others. 

Our 
relationship 
with our 
clients– why are 
we best placed?

 Early advice on technical accounting  issues, providing certainty of accounting treatments, future 

financial planning implications and resulting in draft statements that are 'right first time’

 Knowledge and expertise in all matters local government, including local objections and 

challenge, where we have an unrivalled depth of expertise. 

 Early engagement on issues, especially on ADMs, housing delivery changes, Children services 

and Adult Social Care restructuring, partnership working with the NHS, inter authority 

agreements, governance and financial reporting

 Implementation of our recommendations have resulted in demonstrable improvements in your 

underlying arrangements, for example accounting for unique assets, financial management, 

reporting and governance, and tax implications for the Cornwall Council companies 

 Robust but pragmatic challenge – seeking early liaison on issues, and having the difficult 

conversations early to ensure a 'no surprises' approach – always doing the right thing

 Providing regional training and networking opportunities for your teams on technical accounting 

issues and developments and changes to Annual Reporting requirements

 An efficient audit approach, providing  tangible benefits, such as releasing finance staff earlier 

and prompt resolution of issues.

Delivering real 
value through:

Our client base 
and delivery
 We are the largest supplier of external audit 

services to local government

 We audit over 150 local government clients

 We signed 95% of  our local government 
opinions in 2017/18 by 31 July

 In our latest independent client service 
review, we consistently score 9/10 or 
above. Clients value our strong interaction, 
our local knowledge and wealth of 
expertise.

Our technical 
support
 We have specialist leads for Public Sector 

Audit quality and technical

 We provide national technical guidance on 
emerging auditing, financial reporting and 
ethical areas

 Specialist audit software is used to deliver 
maximum efficiencies

Our commitment to our local government 

clients

• Senior level investment

• Local presence enhancing our 

responsiveness, agility and flexibility.

• High quality audit delivery

• Collaborative working across the public 

sector

• Wider connections across the public sector 

economy, including with health and other 

local government bodies

• Investment in Health and Wellbeing, Social 

Value and the Vibrant Economy 

• Sharing of best practice and our thought 

leadership.

• Invitations to training events locally and 

regionally – bespoke training for emerging 

issues

• Further investment in data analytics and 

informatics to keep our knowledge of the 

areas up to date and to assist in designing a 

fully tailored audit approach

P
age 32



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP   |   Annual Audit Letter   |   23 August 2019

© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Hyndburn Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2020

November 2019

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 6.



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at November 2019 4

Audit Deliverables 6

Sector Update 7

2

P
age 36



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report on progress in delivering our 
responsibilities as your external auditors. 
The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority; and

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Committee may wish to consider (these 
are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section dedicated to our work in the 
public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications www.grantthornton.co.uk ..

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive regular email 
updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either Andrew or Helen.

Introduction

3

Andrew Smith

Engagement Lead

M 07960 214550
E andrew.j.smith@uk.gt.com

Helen Stevenson

Engagement Manager

M 07880 456209
E helen.l.stevenson@uk.gt.com

P
age 37



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

Progress at November 2019

4

Financial Statements Audit
We issued our opinion on your 2018/19 Statement of Accounts on 31 July 
2019 and certified the closure of the audit.

We will begin our planning for the 2019/20 audit in November and will then 
issue a detailed audit plan, setting out our proposed approach to the audit of 
the Council's financial statements.

We will begin our interim audit in January 2020. Our interim fieldwork 
includes:

• Updated review of the Council’s control environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and aim to give our 
opinion on the Statement of Accounts by the statutory accounts publication 
date of 31 July 2020.

Value for Money
The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 
The Code requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all significant respects, the 
audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers 
and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall are:

•Informed decision making

•Sustainable resource deployment

•Working with partners and other third parties

Details of our initial risk assessment to determine our approach will be  included in 
our Audit Plan. 

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and aim to give our Value For 
Money Conclusion by the statutory accounts publication date of 31 July 2020.

P
age 38



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

Other areas
Certification of claims and returns
We certify the Council’s annual Housing Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with 
procedures agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions. The certification work for 
the 2018/19 is in progress and will be completed by the 30 November deadline. We will 
report our findings to the Audit Committee in our Certification Letter at the next meeting. 

Meetings
We hold regular meetings with Finance Officers and continue to be in discussions with 
finance staff regarding emerging developments and to ensure the audit process is 
smooth and effective.

Events
We provide a range of workshops, along with network events for members and 
publications to support the Council. Your officers are invited to our annual Financial 
Reporting Workshops which aim to help ensure that members of your Finance Team are 
up to date with the latest financial reporting requirements for local authority accounts.

Further details of the publications that may be of interest to the Council are set out in our 
Sector Update section of this report.

Audit Fees
During 2017, PSAA awarded contracts for audit for a five year period beginning on 1 April 
2018. 2019/20 is the second year of that contract. Since that time, there have been a 
number of developments within the accounting and audit profession. Across all sectors and 
firms, the Financial Reporting Council  (FRC) has set out its expectation of improved 
financial reporting from organisations and the need for auditors to demonstrate increased 
scepticism and challenge and to undertake additional and more robust testing. 

Our work in the Local Government sector in 2018/19 has highlighted areas where financial 
reporting, in particular, property, plant and equipment and pensions, needs to improve. 
There is also an increase in the complexity of Local Government financial transactions and 
financial reporting. This combined with the FRC requirement that all Local Government 
audits are at or above the “few improvements needed” (2A) rating means that additional 
audit work is required. 

We are currently reviewing the impact of these changes on both the cost and timing of 
audits. We will discuss this with your s151 Officer including any proposed variations to the 
Scale Fee set by PSAA Limited, before communicating fully with the Audit Committee. 

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard 
to audit quality and local government financial reporting. 

Progress at November 2019 (Cont.)

5

P
age 39



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

Audit Deliverables

6

2018/19 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report was reported to the July Audit Committee.

July 2019 Complete

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2019 Complete

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2019 Complete

2019/20 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2018/19.

April 2019 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Committee setting out our proposed 
approach in order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2019-20 financial statements.

January 2020 Not yet due

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial value for money risk assessment within 
our Progress Report.

March 2020 Not yet due

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Committee.

July 2020 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2020 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2020 Not yet due

P
age 40



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 
achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 
public services, whilst facing the challenges to 
address rising demand, ongoing budget 
pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of emerging 
national issues and developments to support you. We cover areas which 
may have an impact on your organisation, the wider NHS and the public 
sector as a whole. Links are provided to the detailed report/briefing to 
allow you to delve further and find out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research on 
service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest research 
publications in this update. We also include areas of potential interest to 
start conversations within the organisation and with audit committee 
members, as well as any accounting and regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

7

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 
government sections on the Grant Thornton website by clicking on the logos 
below:

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 
specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates

Public Sector
Local 

government

P
age 41



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

CIPFA – CFO confidence survey

In July, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) reported the results of their annual 
confidence survey.
The survey found that the majority of local government finance officers have lost confidence 
in their future financial positions over the last year.

Seventy per cent of respondents said they were either slightly less or much less confident in 
their financial position this year compared to 2018-19.

The survey also found that 68% said they were either slightly less or much less confident in 
their ability to deliver services in 2020-21. Sixty-two per cent expressed equal confidence in 
their financial position for 2019-20 as they had last year. 

CIPFA found that the area of greatest pressure for top tier authorities was children’s social 
care, with the number of authorities rating it as the biggest pressure rising by six percentage 
points.

For districts the greatest pressures were housing, cultural services and environmental 
services.

Rob Whiteman, CIPFA chief executive, said: “Local government is facing greater demand 
pressures than ever before, with particularly pressures in adults’ and children’s social care 
and housing. Local authorities also lack certainty about their future financial positions, so it’s 
unsurprising to see confidence on the decline.

“We have repeatedly pointed out that local government is in need of a sustainable funding 
solution, but meeting this demand requires more than pennies and pounds. The sector as a 
whole must come together to address the challenges of effective service delivery.”

CIPFA’s survey received a total of 119 responses from authorities in the UK - 56 top tier 
authorities, 47 English districts, 12 Scottish authorities, and 4 Welsh authorities.

On the same theme, a Local Government Association (LGA) survey, also reported in July, 
found that almost two-thirds of councils believe cash for services like adult social care, child 
protection and preventing homelessness will dry up by 2024-25. 

The survey got responses from 141 of the 339 LGA member councils in England and Wales.

It also found that 17% of councils were not confident of realising all of the savings they 
had identified this year (2019-20).

The LGA said that councils needed a guarantee they will have enough money to meet 
growing demand pressures in particular in adult social care, children’s services, special 
educational needs, homelessness support and public health.

8

P
age 42



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

MHCLG – Independent probe into local 
government audit

In July, the then Communities secretary, James Brokenshire, 
announced the government is to examine local authority 
financial reporting and auditing.
At the CIPFA conference he told delegates the independent review will be headed up by Sir 
Tony Redmond, a former CIPFA president.

The government was “working towards improving its approach to local government oversight 
and support”, Brokenshire promised.

“A robust local audit system is absolutely pivotal to work on oversight, not just because it 
reinforces confidence in financial reporting but because it reinforces service delivery and, 
ultimately, our faith in local democracy,” he said.

“There are potentially far-reaching consequences when audits aren’t carried out properly and 
fail to detect significant problems.”

The review will look at the quality of local authority audits and whether they are highlighting 
when an organisation is in financial trouble early enough.

It will also look at whether the public has lost faith in auditors and whether the current audit 
arrangements for councils are still “fit for purpose”.

On the appointment of Redmond, CIPFA chief executive Rob Whiteman said: “Tony 
Redmond is uniquely placed to lead this vital review, which will be critical for determining 
future regulatory requirements.

“Local audit is crucial in providing assurance and accountability to the public, while helping to 
prevent financial and governance failure.”

He added: “This work will allow us to identify what is needed to make local audit as robust as 
possible, and how the audit function can meet the assurance needs, both now and in the 
future, of the sector as a whole.”

In the question and answer session following his speech, Brokenshire said he was not 
looking to bring back the Audit Commission, which appointed auditors to local bodies and 
was abolished in 2015. MHCLG note that auditing of local authorities was then taken over by 
the private, voluntary and not-for-profit sectors.

He explained he was “open minded”, but believed the Audit Commission was “of its time”.

Local authorities in England are responsible for 22% of total UK public sector expenditure so 
their accounts “must be of the highest level of transparency and quality”, the Ministry of 
Housing, Local Government and Communities said. The review will also look at how local 
authorities publish their annual accounts and if the financial reporting system is robust 
enough.

Redmond, who has also been a local authority treasurer and chief executive, is expected to 
report to the communities secretary with his initial recommendations in December 2019, with 
a final report published in March 2020. Redmond has also worked as a local government 
boundary commissioner and held the post of local government ombudsman.

9

P
age 43



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

National Audit Office – Code of Audit Practice

The Code of Audit Practice sets out what local auditors of 
relevant local public bodies are required to do to fulfill their 
statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. ‘Relevant authorities’ are set out in 
Schedule 2 of the Act and include local councils, fire 
authorities, police and NHS bodies.  

Local auditors must comply with the Code of Audit Practice.

Consultation – New Code of Audit Practice from 2020
Schedule 6 of the Act requires that the Code be reviewed, and revisions considered at least 
every five years. The current Code came into force on 1 April 2015, and the maximum five-
year lifespan of the Code means it now needs to be reviewed and a new Code laid in 
Parliament in time for it to come in to force no later than 1 April 2020.

In order to determine what changes might be appropriate, the NAO is consulting on potential 
changes to the Code in two stages:

Stage 1 involves engagement with key stakeholders and public consultation on the issues that 
are considered to be relevant to the development of the Code.

This stage of the consultation is now closed. The NAO received a total of 41 responses to the 
consultation which included positive feedback on the two-stage approach to developing the 
Code that has been adopted. The NAO state that they have considered carefully the views of 
respondents in respect of the points drawn out from the Issues paper and this will inform the 
development of the draft Code. A summary of the responses received to the questions set 
out in the Issues paper can be found below. 

Local audit in England Code of Audit Practice – Consultation Response (pdf – 256KB)

Stage 2 of the consultation involves consulting on the draft text of the new Code. To support 
stage 2, the NAO has published a consultation document, which highlights the key changes 
to each chapter of the draft Code. The most significant changes are in relation to the Value 
for Money arrangements. Rather than require auditors to focus on delivering an overall, 
binary, conclusion about whether or not proper arrangements were in place during the 
previous financial year, the draft Code requires auditors to issue a commentary on each of 
the criteria. This will allow auditors to tailor their commentaries to local circumstances. The 
Code proposes three specific criteria:

a) Financial sustainability: how the body plans and manages its resources to ensure it can 
continue to deliver its services;

b) Governance: how the body ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly 
manages its risks; and

c) Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the body uses information about 
its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

The consultation document and a copy of the draft Code can be found on the NAO website. 
The consultation is open until 22 November 2019. The new Code will apply from audits of 
local bodies’ 2020-21 financial statements onwards.

Link to NAO webpage for the Code consultation:

https://www.nao.org.uk/code-audit-practice/code-of-audit-practice-consultation/

10

P
age 44



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

Local Government Association – Profit with a 
purpose – delivering social value through 
commercial activity

The Local Government Association (LGA) report 'Profit with a 
purpose' focuses on some of the practicalities of how councils 
can deliver social value through their commercial activity.
Through ‘key questions’ to ask, the guidance supports councils to face the challenge of how 
to undertake commercial activity and achieve greater value for the public purse in ways that 
better meet society’s needs and outcomes for people and communities.

In addition, the publication features a number of short case studies highlighting some of the 
innovative commercial practice already achieving results for communities.

The LGA comments that the best approaches ensure the generation of social value is the 
primary factor driving commercial activity; from the initial decision to develop a commercial 
vision to how the approach is developed, and implemented, councils which are pulling ahead 
ensure social value is placed centre stage. 

The guidance starts with an overview of what the LGA understands by ‘profit with a purpose’, 
the guidance explores different types of social value and the role of councils in driving social 
value alongside their commercial ambition. 

The guidance then looks at how consideration and delivery of social value should be 
practically considered when deciding on whether to embark on commercial activity, the need 
for social value to be prioritised alongside financial return and the key questions councils 
should consider when embarking on a commercial initiative. 

Following on from this, there are specific chapters on; embedding social value in governance 
of alternative service delivery vehicles, the role of procurement in contracting services that 
deliver social value and finally how to contract and performance manage social value 
through your service providers. 

Each chapter outlines the factors that need to be considered and the ‘key questions’ councils 
should be asking themselves. 

In addition, a number of short case studies are provided to highlight some of the innovative 
commercial practice already achieving results for communities.

The report can be downloaded from the LGA website:

https://www.local.gov.uk/profit-purpose-delivering-social-value-through-commercial-activity

11

P
age 45



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

MHCLG – Brexit preparations

Councils should be fully prepared to leave the European 
Union by the end of October, the Communities and Local 
Government Secretary announced on 3 August as he ramped 
up preparations.

Mr Jenrick thanked councils for all the work they have already done, but said they must step 
up vital preparations and committed £20 million for councils across England to prepare for 
delivering Brexit on 31 October, whatever the circumstances.

He has asked each council to designate a Brexit lead to work with central government and 
oversee teams in every community who will work with stakeholders in their area to plan 
intensively for Brexit.

The new funding comes in recognition of the central role councils will play to make sure their 
residents are ready for Brexit, and is expected to support a range of activity including 
communications, training and the recruitment of staff.

The Secretary of State said: 

“From Whitehall to town halls – everyone needs to be ready to fulfil our democratic mandate 
to leave the European Union by the end of October. 

Local government has a vital role in helping to make Brexit a success and it is absolutely 
right that together we intensify preparations in every community.

And to do this successfully I have asked every council to appoint a Brexit lead to work with 
government. We’ll be providing £20 million for councils to support the major step up in 
preparations.

I want all of us – central and local government – to be fully prepared for leaving the EU on 31 
October whatever the circumstances. I know that we can achieve this, by continuing to work 
side by side with renewed national focus and intensity.”

12

P
age 46



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | November 2019

Public Accounts Committee – Local Government 
Governance and Accountability
The Public Accounts Committee has found that the 
Government has not done enough to ensure that, at a time 
when local authority budgets are under extreme pressure, 
governance systems are improved.
The Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (the Department) is responsible 
for: ensuring that this framework contains the right checks and balances, and changing the 
system if necessary. The Secretary of State also has powers to intervene in cases of 
perceived governance failure. The framework includes: officers with statutory powers and 
responsibilities; internal checks and balances such as audit committees and internal audit; 
and external checks and balances such as external audit and sector-led improvement 
overseen by the Local Government Association. These arrangements represent a significant 
reduction in the level of central oversight in recent years following the government’s decision 
to abolish the Audit Commission and the Standards Board for England as part of a broader 
reform of local audit, inspection and reporting.

The Public Accounts Committee report summary notes “Local authorities have a good 
overall track record with governance arrangements generally robust across the sector, and 
there is evidence that local authority governance compares favourably to that of the health 
sector. However, this is not universal and in some authorities governance is under strain, as 
funding reduces and responsibilities and exposure to commercial pressures change. We are 
worried to hear about audit committees that do not provide sufficient assurance, ineffective 
internal audit, weak arrangements for the management of risk in local authorities’ 
commercial investments, and inadequate oversight and scrutiny. This is not acceptable in 
the more risky, complex and fast-moving environment in which local authorities now operate.

The Department has been reactive and ill-informed in its approach to oversight of the local 
governance system. However, the Department has now recognised that the network of 
bodies with responsibility for the local governance framework is fragmented and lacking the 
leadership needed to drive change. Encouragingly, the Department has now committed to 
enhancing its oversight role and producing a proactive work programme to deliver this 
change. We urge the Department to ensure that this activity leads to concrete actions and 
outcomes on a timely basis. When a local authority fails this has a significant impact on local 
people and the Department has a responsibility to work with local government to ensure that 
problems are caught early and that it can pinpoint at-risk councils. Since the abolition of the 
Audit Commission and other changes culminating in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 there is no central assessment of value for the money, which means the Department’s 
work is fundamental.”

The report makes five conclusions, with associated recommendations:

1) The Department is not yet providing effective leadership of the local governance system. 

2) The Department does not know why some local authorities are raising concerns that 
external audit is not meeting their needs.

3) The Department lacks reliable information on key governance risks, or relies on weak 
sources of information, meaning it has no way of pinpointing the at-risk councils.

4) The Department’s monitoring is not focused on long-term risks to council finances and 
therefore to services.

5) There is a complete lack of transparency over both the Department’s informal 
interventions in local authorities with financial or governance problems and the results of 
its formal interventions.

The Government response is available on the website below:

https://www.parliament.uk/documents/commons-committees/public-accounts/Gov-response-
to-Public-Accounts-on-the-93-98-reports.pdf

13

P
age 47



© 2019 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 
and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 
for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 48


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of the Last Meeting
	3. Audit Progress Report and Key Issues July 2019 - October 2019
	4. Audit Follow Ups Report July 2019 - October 2019
	5. The Annual Audit Letter for Hyndburn Borough Council (Grant Thornton )
	6. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update (Grant Thornton)

